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Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 16.12.14 

  [12.31 pm] 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay. 5 

 

MR CLEARY:   Good afternoon, sir, and your Honour. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So are you there yet? 

 10 

MR CLEARY:   I am told that we are almost there, and all that remains is the 

consolidation of the assessment criteria or assessment matters 

contained within the rules package.  I am also told, I think there is a 

common expectation between myself and my friends, Ms Scott and 

Mr Carranceja, that the rules package will be finalised and agreed as 15 

between the Crown, my client and the Council. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay.  What I should have done is just check.  Sorry, 

Mr Cleary - have we had circulated an attendance register?  I just want 

to check that all relevant parties are here.  20 

 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, I can indicate that in terms of your minute from yesterday 

I did actually circulate that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I beg your pardon? 25 

 

MR CLEARY:   I did circulate that minute to the Community Boards and 

Mr Mora and also the representative of Terrace Developments Limited.  

Notwithstanding that three of those parties have actually withdrawn but 

I have heard back this morning from the Community Boards advising 30 

that they do not wish to attend on the basis that they have withdrawn 

their opposition to the exemplar housing area.  I have not heard back 

from either Mr Mora or Mr Hardy (ph 3.04) for Terrace Developments. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  Well, we will just wait for the register to come up 35 

and see where we are with who is here, and then we will have to talk 

about what we need in order to vacate the directions and what follows 

from that.   

 

 I have got a Nicole Lauenstein representing the Starks. (ph 3.44)  40 

 

MR CLEARY:   That would be from the previous pre-hearing. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   The natural hazards, yes. 

 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Right, okay.  Okay, so the issue is we do not have 

Mr Mora here obviously, we know Mr Mora and have we had email 

indications from the Community Boards and other associations of their 

withdrawal? 

 5 

MR CLEARY:   We have had separate memoranda filed by the Riccarton-

Wigram Community Board and the Spreydon-Heathcote Community 

Board, and we have also had email correspondence between myself and 

the Halswell Residents Association. 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR CLEARY:   And also correspondence between myself and Mr Mora.  I 

have provided copies of that email correspondence, as indicated in my 

last memorandum, I have provided copies of that correspondence to the 15 

Secretariat. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well, I mean as you would understand, Mr Cleary, 

until such time as the Board can rely upon an indication signed by – 

well, not an indication, a clear statement of position of withdrawal or 20 

acceptance of the settlement from those parties themselves, it has to be 

signed by them, the Panel in a procedural sense must allow opportunity 

for their submissions to be heard. 

 

  [12.35 pm] 25 

 

MR CLEARY:   I am happy to go back to those parties who have not filed 

anything official asking that they do so as a matter of urgency. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, in effect we need a joint memorandum, do we not, 30 

from all parties who – we need two things.  One, for those parties that 

have not filed a memorandum of withdrawal of their interest we have to 

assume their interest remains alive, so those parties that intend to fully 

withdraw need to put in writing to the Panel that withdrawal, just as has 

been done for the Riccarton-Wigram Community Board.  35 

 

 And, secondly, those parties that wish their case to remain alive but 

accept the relief agreed by other parties as a basis for the Panel to make 

their decisions, they need to be signatories to a joint memorandum for 

the Panel to be able to act on that.  That is effectively the position 40 

because otherwise, as you fully understand, they have a right to be 

heard and if the Panel was to Act in ignorance of that or not to allow 

for that then procedural issues arise from that. 
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MR CLEARY:   I understand that and I think if we distinguish between 

Mr Mora on one hand who has indicated, as I have set out in my 

memorandum, that he withdraws his opposition personally. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   But he would like “my submission to be available to the 5 

Panel”, that is what he has told you, but he needs to tell the Panel what 

he needs to tell the Panel. 

 

MR CLEARY:   And if that is the case I think his mind might be more focused 

if your Honour were to actually issue a direction to that effect.  I mean I 10 

can ask him, and I have asked him to file something more formal to 

remove sort of any ambiguity as to his position, but to date obviously 

he has not done so. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, just looking at the directions you are asking for and 15 

just clarify that because if you go to your paragraph 18.  So you ask 

that “Further steps in the timetable for exchange of evidence as set out 

in the pre-hearing report and directions dated 4 December be 

suspended”.  My answer to you on that at the moment is we cannot do 

that yet in light of the lack of certainty on these issues.   20 

 

 No 2, “The parties instead be directed to file the necessary consent 

memorandum and supporting evidence, affidavit or otherwise, by a 

specified time” and then you suggest a date.  The Panel is not in a 

position to do that because we cannot direct a party to be a signatory to 25 

a consent memorandum if they wish to run a contested position if that 

is their prerogative.  

 

MR CLEARY:   It is of course my clear understanding that no party wants to 

run a contested position.   30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I appreciate that is your clear understanding.  Then 

(c), “Such further alternative directions as the Panel considers 

appropriate in the circumstances”.  I suppose as far as the Panel could 

go is to say that we have been advised in your memorandum that the 35 

parties who are not here today are close to or very close to settlement, 

that is the advice we received from you.  The Panel needs to know 

whether or not the timetabling directions can be vacated and whether 

this matter is on a settlement track or not, and simply ask parties to 

advise that position by a certain date. 40 

 

 I think that is probably about as far as we can.  We cannot coerce 

parties to take a particular view but we can set some sort of direction on 

an expectation that will inform the Panel, bearing in mind they were 

directed to be here today and they are not.   45 
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MR CLEARY:   As I suggested previously, a direction to those parties, other 

than the parties that have filed official memorandum, to the effect that 

they formally advise the Panel that they have withdrawn their 

opposition to - - - 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   “If” they have withdrawn their opposition, not that “they 

have” withdrawn their opposition.  The Panel cannot tell them to advise 

that they have withdrawn their opposition. 

 

MR CLEARY:   My apologies, yes, “if”.   10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So if they have withdrawn their opposition, yes, and when 

would you like that by? 

 

MR CLEARY:   I would like the deadline to be by tomorrow, 5.00 pm 15 

tomorrow.  In my view, sir, it should be a very straightforward matter 

given the position reached between Danne Mora and those parties. 

 

  [12.40 pm] 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, we will give some thought to whether that is too 

tight or not.  It might be that we add a little bit of time to that. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, the tightness is - - - 

 25 

DISCUSSION 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So the suggestion is two things.  We extend that to allow 

for 48 hours but we allow them to signal that by email rather than 

having to formally lodge a memorandum.  So that would save a bit of 30 

time there. 

 

MR CLEARY:   But I guess on that point, sir, they have already indicated by 

email - - - 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   To you.  Well, that is not good enough for the Panel.  So 

just understand me Mr Cleary - - - 

 

MR CLEARY:   Yes, okay. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - it is the Panel’s responsibility, the Panel needs to 

receive that indication.   

 

SIR HANSEN:   His emails have gone to you. 

 45 

MR CLEARY:   And subsequently provided to the Panel. 
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SIR HANSEN:   By you. 

 

MR CLEARY:   To the Secretariat. 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   By you.  Yes.  We have got to get it direct from them. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Crystal clear now, sir, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Otherwise we could face somebody coming down and 10 

saying well look, you know that was an email, we did not see the 

subsequent email, or something like that.  I am not saying you would 

ever do that to us, but it is just that we need to - - - 

 

MR CLEARY:   I did not think of it, sir. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   No.  We need to have the appearance of due process in it 

as well in all senses. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   If we simplify it by way of email as opposed to a 20 

memorandum means they have got no excuse for not responding in a 

timely manner.  If it is a memorandum they have to file.  You would 

have an issue. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So if we do not get cooperation on that front, get silence 25 

or whatever else and things have to remain afoot then presumably we 

can do something to tune the process of hearing to what is truly in 

contest.  And it may be that we can revisit the directions free for the 

nature of the exchange of evidence required to facilitate what needs to 

be just a focus on points of difference.  Agree with that? 30 

 

MR CLEARY:   Of course, sir, yes. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Would it be possible if they do not notify formally by email 

that there is simply a statement of evidence which is countersigned by 35 

Crown and Council in agreement? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   So there is only one formal document, so you do not have to 40 

go through the formal evidential process. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   If they just get difficult and do not file. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   So that would mean, for instance, you lodge by consent 

with the Crown and the Council a single statement of evidence that 

covers all of the legal bases that the Panel must consider in order to 

make a legally safe decision.  That is the first base covered off.  That 

they would perhaps follow with their evidence if they have any, and 5 

you right of rebuttal to that evidence giving you license to cover 

whatever new issues are arising from that second stage if you need to. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, I think a process such as that might actually cause some 

confusion to parties - - - 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just trying to help you, Mr Cleary. 

 

MR CLEARY:   I understand – I totally understand that but - - - 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So what would your suggestion be because I just tell you 

why.  The Panel will not be in a position to simply sign off on a 

consent memorandum that simply says the parties have agreed.  

Because your responsibility and the other parties is to ensure the Panel 

has a basis upon which it can makes its decision in accordance with the 20 

Order in Council and the statutory matters that must be considered. 

 

 Just as applies in the Environment Court with a consent memorandum.  

So to facilitate that and to avoid you having to prepare a brief evidence 

on a whole range of matters that simply are not in contention looking to 25 

sort of modify the directions that currently apply, but what do you 

suggest? 

 

MR CLEARY:   My thinking, sir, is that there might be some confusion if we 

do file the joint statement of evidence say at some stage next week that 30 

one or more of the parties who indicated to me that they have 

withdrawn might actually think that they can participate in some 

respect in the hearing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So what are you asking for? 35 

 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, my view that the direction that the parties identify either 

by email or something more formal by 5.00 pm tomorrow - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   48 hours. 40 

 

MR CLEARY:   48 hours.  Whether or not they do oppose. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes and if they do not respond what happens next? 

 45 
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  [12.45 pm] 

 

MR CLEARY:   Well if they do not respond we will be filing the joint 

evidence at some stage. 

 5 

SIR HANSEN:   Well that is all that was being said. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  Just looking ahead - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   It is the default position.  If they do not respond and 10 

withdraw, if they withdraw then you will to file a consent 

memorandum in the form the Judge indicated, ticking all the boxes, if 

they just ignore it or they say no we have changed our mind then the 

default position will be you file a joint statement of evidence covering 

the bases, so that it becomes not a proforma hearing but a greatly 15 

shortened hearing. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Yes, it does. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Without you having to go to the trouble of fully briefing all of 20 

your witnesses and filing that documentation.  We are trying to help 

you. 

 

MR CLEARY:   I totally - - - 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Shall we do it on this basis then, Mr Cleary.  That first 

step.  You make that direction.  The current hearing timetable and 

evidence timetable just remains afoot until such time as you at a second 

stage apply for a change of directions. 

 30 

MR CLEARY:   The next step in the timetable is 18th of this month and it is 

now the 16th, and so we have 48 hours for - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Would you like a few more days on that 18th just in the 

meantime? 35 

 

MR CLEARY:   I would greatly appreciate it. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We cannot lose the hearing slot.  That is the first thing.  If 

there are matters in contention we must hear them on that timetable. 40 

 

MR CLEARY:   Completely understand that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Other parties are following that direction as well.  They 

have not given us the courtesy of attending but nevertheless they 45 

remain alive as part of the entitlement to be heard.  So we have to be 
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careful about that. If you want to ask for some softening of that – 

effectively this is why I made the suggestion to you earlier as a (B) 

plan.  If you do not get what you are asking for from the other parties, 

so that these matters can be dealt with on paper, who help your burden 

for two days out do you want two more days on that or something like 5 

that?  And do you want any other directions about the nature of that 

evidence? 

 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, pushing the timetable for filing the joint evidence to the 

22nd or 23rd would be much appreciated.  I think preferably the latter. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right.  Can I just quickly check.  Ms Scott, does this sit 

well with the Council?  And then Mr Carranceja with the Crown? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  Look that was actually going to be my 15 

suggestion rather than having to provide new evidence on Thursday.  It 

would seem far more sensible that by Thursday 5.00 pm we will know 

a confirmed view of the submitters – I am sorry, the Panel will have a 

confirmed view perhaps.  I have 22nd jotted down but 23rd is fine as 

well for us, thank you, sir. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right.  Mr Carranceja is that fine with you? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Yes, sir, same position, sir, thank you. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, okay, so we could just leave it to you Mr Cleary as to 

how you coordinate with that but on the understanding that it is a joint 

position.  Effectively we can record that the Crown, the Council and 

your client are in a jointly agreed position on how this matter should be 

determined.  Only evidence in regard to that position needs to be 30 

exchanged on the 23rd and you can simply take note of the needs of the 

Panel to have the bases covered in order to meet its legal obligations 

should it grant the relief you are seeking for simply cover those bases 

in that statement. 

 35 

MR CLEARY:   Indeed. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And will put it on the 23rd, 5.00 pm? 

 

MR CLEARY:   Yes, that would be much appreciated sir. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 
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MR CLEARY:   I did indicate in the memorandum of having some general 

evidence regarding the suitability of the land for rezoning from rural to 

residential, and that would essentially be a summary of the technical 

analysis that has been undertaken to date on that issue. 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, you could simply for instance have a planner briefed 

to say that on the basis of the various things the planner has considered, 

for instance the views of your client, the various technical things that 

have informed their opinion and their opinion about the provisions, 

they could simply state what that is. 10 

 

MR CLEARY:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The important thing in briefing that person is to make sure 

their brief is comprehensive when it comes to the matters the Panel 15 

must consider.  So the Panel has a single point of reference to which it 

can look at and determine whether or not those matters allow for the 

relief you are seeking.  Obviously on the basis that we still cannot 

determine whether or not another party has a different view you will 

have a sense of that and you will cover the base to the extent you need 20 

to base on what you know about other parties’ positions.  I will leave 

that to you.  Obviously on the basis that their evidence exchange 

obligations will remain in place as they are.  All right? 

 

  [12.50 pm] 25 

 

MR CLEARY:   That is essentially our only concern, is whether these parties, 

well one party in particular - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 30 

 

MR CLEARY:   - - - whose position is ambiguous. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, we do not want to scare the pigeons. Well, they 

might not be pigeons but you do not actually want to actually disturb 35 

where they are, and that is fine, that is a matter for you to judge, but I 

think the important thing is we do not lose sight of the fact that at the 

moment we do not have a consensus, if we had a consensus before us it 

would be a lot easier, if we had it in writing, but we do not, we cannot 

prejudge it. 40 

 

MR CLEARY:   Yes, well I have asked this particular person to lodge 

something formal, as I said before, and he has declined to do so. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well if they determine not to exchange evidence as 45 

well, then clearly we can have a hearing on a very focused basis. 
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MR CLEARY:   Indeed. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   But we will be directing them now to respond.  They may 

view it differently and it makes it easier for you if it comes from us. 5 

 

MR CLEARY:   I think a direction from the Panel will certainly focus their 

mind. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  And certainly I am not aware of any correspondence 10 

to say they could not be here today so we have all been a little bit 

inconvenienced by that.  Is that all? 

 

MR CLEARY:   I think without trying to explain their absence, it may well be 

that the parties took the view that they had withdrawn and on that basis, 15 

their attendance may not have been required, similar to what I was 

advised by the community board. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, it is only for you to check I suppose, at that point, 

we can only guess.  20 

 

 Commissioner Sutherland is sitting here in the expert witness box and I 

was rude enough not to mention that earlier on, because he was here for 

the earlier session as well, and he is here because he has been 

scheduled to assist with facilitative mediation, so where are we on that?  25 

 

MR CLEARY:   Well, mediation as between the community boards and 

Mr Mora took place on Saturday, 6 December, I think that is set out in 

my memorandum. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is it the view of everyone here that there is no need for 

mediation? 

 

MR CLEARY:   Certainly not, no need sir. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR CLEARY:   And that is where the agreement was reached. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  All right.  Well I do not know if there is anything 40 

further we can do there other than indicate we will issue a minute on 

that. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Thank you, sir, much appreciated. 

 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, if I can just address the Panel on an entirely 

separate manner.  I think it might be useful for the parties generally if 

we could get an indication from the Panel at some stage regarding its 

forward planning for the remaining hearings as well, such as 

designations, et cetera, sir.  I think it would just be useful. 5 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Well I can indicate now that designations will certainly fill the 

slot vacated by Natural Hazards, so 16 February.  

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 10 

 

SIR HANSEN:   But we will work through that.  As to the rest of it, when we 

have got someone to sit down with and successfully do a work program 

in the future, which is likely to happen very soon I understand, we will 

do that. 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir, much appreciated. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Do you expect there would be any likelihood of a 

memorandum coming in on behalf of the various Crown agencies with 20 

requiring authority status indicating any consensus that has been 

achieved by the Council on any of that? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   It is something we will work through, sir.   

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Some of the issues seem quite narrow? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, and at the moment we are just doing a double 

checking exercise to find out if there are any submitters and further 

submitters that might be interested in those same designations, sir.   30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Thank you very much. 

 35 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 12.53 PM ACCORDINGLY 


